
CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

AGENDA

APRIL 9, 2020

6:00 P.M.

Roll Call.

Pledge of Allegiance 

Approval of Minutes: March 12, 2020

Final Plats

Consent Agenda

(1) P-0420-11 Edgar Dailey Is Requesting Final Plat Approval For Resurvey of Lot 1 
Magnolia Ridge. The Purpose for This Request Is to Resurvey One Lot 
Into Two. The Property Is Owned By Edgar Dailey and Is Zoned Vestavia 
Hills R-1.

(2) P-0420-13 Jason Ozburn Is Requesting Final Plat Approval For 1st Addition to 
Vestavia Hills Resurvey. The Purpose for This Request Is to Resurvey Lot 
Lines. The Property Is Owned By Jason Ozburn and Is Zoned Vestavia Hills 
R-1.

Rezoning/Conditional Use Recommendations

(3) P-0420-12 CRM Enterprises Is Requesting Conditional Use Approval For
Mechanical Repair Of Motor Vehicles And Short Term Storage Of The 
Same, With An Exterior Security Fence For The Address at 1456
Montgomery Hwy (Zoned B-3).

SPECIAL NOTICE:  Pursuant to 
“Stay at Home” orders from the 

Governor of the State of Alabama 
due to COVID-19 Pandemic, the 

Planning and Zoning Commission 
meeting of April 9, 2020 will be 

video-conferenced and 
teleconferenced.  Anyone may 
participate via phone/computer.  

Participation via 
videoconferencing through 

Zoom.com may be viewed by 
clicking the following link:  
https://us04web.zoom.us/

j/7970217974
To attend via teleconference, 
please dial 312.626.6799 and enter 
the meeting ID of 797 021 7974



CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

MINUTES

MARCH 12, 2020

6:00 P.M.

The Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Vestavia Hills met in regular session on this 
date at 6:00 P.M. following posting/publication as required by Alabama law.  The roll was called 
with the following:

MEMBERS PRESENT: Erica Barnes, Chair
Rusty Weaver
Ryan Ferrell
Jonathan Romeo
Mike Vercher
Fred Goodwin

MEMBERS ABSENT: Lyle Larson
Hasting Sykes
Cheryl Cobb

OTHER OFFICIALS PRESENT: Conrad Garrison, City Planner

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Mrs. Barnes stated that the minutes of the meeting February 13, 2020 are presented for approval.

MOTION Motion to approve minutes was by Mr. Weaver and second was by Mr. Romeo.
Voice vote as follows:

Mr. Vercher – yes Mr. Ferrell– yes
Mr. Romeo – yes Mr. Goodwin – yes 
Mr. Weaver – yes Mrs. Barnes – yes
Motion carried.



Final Plats

P-0320-10 8001 Liberty Parkway, LLC Is Requesting Final Plat Approval For 8001 
Liberty Parkway Resurvey No. 1. The Purpose for This Request Is to 
Resurvey One Lot Into Two. The Property Is Owned By 8001 Liberty 
Parkway, LLC and Is Zoned Vestavia Hills PUD-PB.

Mrs. Barnes opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to address the Commission 
concerning this request, Mrs. Barnes closed the public hearing and opened the floor for a motion.

MOTION Mr. Weaver made a motion to approve Final Plat For 8001 Liberty Parkway 
Resurvey No. 1. Second was by Mr. Romeo. Motion was carried on a roll call; vote as follows:

Mr. Vercher – yes Mr. Ferrell– yes
Mr. Romeo – yes Mr. Goodwin – yes 
Mr. Weaver – yes Mrs. Barnes – yes
Motion carried.

Rezoning/Conditional Use Recommendations:

P-0320-08 Station No. 5, LLC Is Requesting Rezoning For 3009 Pumphouse Rd. from 
Vestavia Hills O-1 to Vestavia Hills B-2 For The Purpose Of Office &
Retail Development.

Mr. Garrison explained the background of the request. He stated that the rezoning will allow for an 
office and retail development.

Todd Thompson and John Michael Bodnar were present to explain the request.

Mr. Goodwin asked how drainage would be handled on the site. Mr. Thompson stated the detention
would be held underground before releasing. Mr. Garrison stated the plan met all City 
requirements.

Mrs. Barnes opened the floor for a public hearing.  

Lynn Campisi, 3008 Pumphouse Rd., spoke and stated she was concerned about the restaurant’s
tenants and traffic.

John Michael Bodnar stated he was searching for a breakfast concept.

John Duffy stated he was concerned about potential uses. 

The Commission agreed and stated that certain uses could be prohibited.

Mrs. Barnes closed the public hearing and opened the floor for a motion.



MOTION Mr. Weaver made a motion to recommend Rezoning from Vestavia Hills O-1 to 
Vestavia Hills B-2 for the property located 3009 Pumphouse Rd. with the following condition:

1. Gas stations and auto repair is prohibited;
2. Rezoning based on the site plan presented;
3. Rezoning will not be final until cross access and parking agreements are recorded.

Second was by Mr. Romeo. Motion was carried on a roll call; vote as follows:

Mr. Vercher – yes Mr. Ferrell– yes
Mr. Romeo – yes Mr. Goodwin – yes 
Mr. Weaver – yes Mrs. Barnes – yes
Motion carried.

P-0320-09 Robert & Judith Armstrong are Requesting Rezoning For 3120 Blue Lake 
Dr. & 3123 Timberlake Rd. from Vestavia Hills R-1 to Vestavia Hills B-
1.2 For Retail, Personal Services & Office Development.

Mr. Garrison explained the background of the request. He stated that the rezoning will be for 
another office/personal services building in the Blue Lake area.

Walter Reinecker stated the building would be similar to the office buildings built in the area.

Mrs. Barnes opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to address the Commission 
concerning this request, Mrs. Barnes closed the public hearing and opened the floor for a motion.

MOTION Mr. Weaver made a motion to recommend Rezoning from Vestavia Hills Hills R-1
to Vestavia Hills B-1.2 for the property located 3120 Blue Lake Dr. & 3123 Timberlake Rd. with 
the following condition:

1. Rezoning is not final until resurvey has been recorded.
Second was by Mr. Goodwin. Motion was carried on a roll call; vote as follows:

Mr. Vercher – yes Mr. Ferrell– yes
Mr. Romeo – yes Mr. Goodwin – yes 
Mr. Weaver – yes Mrs. Barnes – yes
Motion carried.

Conrad Garrison, City Planner



1

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

Date:     APRIL 9, 2020

CASE: P-0420-11

REQUESTED ACTION: Final Plat Approval For Resurvey of Lot 1 Magnolia 
Ridge

ADDRESS/LOCATION: 2696 Dolly Ridge Rd

APPLICANT/OWNER: Edgar Dailey

GENERAL DISCUSSION: Plat will subdivide one lot into two. A house currently 
exists on Lot 1-A and will remain. Lot C-1 will be a vacant buildable lot. All 
easements will remain. The lots are currently zoned R-1.

VESTAVIA HILLS COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: This request is consistent with 
the plan for medium residential district.

STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:

1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.   

City Planner Recommendation:  No recommendation

2. City Engineer Review:  No problems noted.

3. City Fire Marshal Review: No problems noted

4. Building Safety Review: No problems noted









1

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

Date:     APRIL 9, 2020

CASE: P-0420-13

REQUESTED ACTION: Final Plat Approval For 1st Addition to Vestavia Hills 
Resurvey

ADDRESS/LOCATION: 2508 Shades Crest Rd.

APPLICANT/OWNER: Jason Ozburn

GENERAL DISCUSSION: Plat will resurvey lot lines to match deed. All 
easements will remain. The lot is currently zoned R-1.

VESTAVIA HILLS COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: This request is consistent with 
the plan for medium residential district.

STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:

1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.   

City Planner Recommendation:  No recommendation

2. City Engineer Review:  No problems noted.

3. City Fire Marshal Review: No problems noted

4. Building Safety Review: No problems noted









1

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

Date:     APRIL 09, 2020

CASE: P-0420-12

REQUESTED ACTION: Conditional Use Approval For Mechanical Repair Of 
Motor Vehicles And Short Term Storage Of The Same, With An Exterior Security 
Fence

ADDRESS/LOCATION: 1456 Montgomery Hwy

APPLICANT/OWNER: CRM Enterprises

GENERAL DISCUSSION: This request is for 1452 Montgomery Highway, the 
former AAMCO Transmission repair.  As you recall, there was a tremendous rock 
slide that occurred there early last year.  (see attached photo of embankment now).  It 
did a good bit of damage and crushed some automobiles.  The AAMCO has moved
and CRM Enterprises (Sonoco) purchased the property.  Sonoco is adjacent to this 
property, just to the south.  The owner, Mr. Birdsong, represented by his legal 
counsel, Loring Jones III, is requesting a conditional use approval for major car 
repair, short-term storage of vehicles on the property and installation of a 6’ black 
chain link fence with shading and barb wire (see attached pictures) around the front 
and side of the property to the front property line.  

Major car repair was there previously with the AAMCO, however, the rock slide 
occurred more than 12 months ago so the use is no longer permissible under the 
City’s newer zoning code.  This request is to allow it once again on the property.

The other, temporary vehicle storage, is to allow towed vehicles as well as vehicles 
waiting for service to be stored on the property.  The request requires security so the 
owner wishes to install a 6’ chain link fence with shading along the front and side 
boundaries of the property.  This will bring the fencing to the front curbing of 
Highway 31.  

Presently, the request shows the 2 accesses to Highway 31 with security gates.  
However, the property owner installed an access between the properties and the City 
Engineer has required a plan review.  It is unknown at this time if the Highway 31 
accesses will be closed in lieu of the new southern inter-property access.

Staff has reviewed this request and indicated that the conditional uses were needed in 
order that the owner may use the property as he desires.  The staff also recommended 
that if the property owner proceed with the request, that landscaping be installed to 
mitigate the effects of the fencing from Montgomery Highway.  The request came 



2

with proposed landscaping, but the landscaping is drawn to be installed on ALDOT 
ROW which the City Engineer states will require ALDOT approvals and permitting.  
If the conditional use is approved, the Staff asks Council to consider require the 
landscaping with or without ALDOT’s approval (without will require the removal of 
some of the asphalt/concrete and installing soil suitable for landscaping). 

VESTAVIA HILLS COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: The plan labels this site as
Commercial Core/Village Center

STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:

1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.   

City Planner Recommendation:  See above

2. City Engineer Review:  CO not to be issued until geotec on slope

3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 
issues with this request. 

4. Building Safety Review: CO not to be issued until geotec on slope

















From: Emris Graham
To: Conrad Garrison
Cc: Jeff Downes
Subject: Request for Conditional Use: 1652 Montgomery Highway
Date: Thursday, March 26, 2020 2:26:24 PM
Attachments: image001.png

Mr. Garrison,
 
I am Managing Partner for the property located at 1460 Montgomery Highway South, Vestavia Hills,
AL. Our property is leased to Cellular Sales for a Verizon Wireless Store. I am writing this email in
opposition to the request for a change in use of the property located at 1452 Montgomery Highway,
just north of us.
 
Approximately 10 years ago, at great expense, we demolished an existing building, raised the
elevation of our site, and constructed an attractive new building on our property. It was the first new
building constructed in this area in many years. A part of our decision to redevelop this property was
that the City of Vestavia Hills was interested in improving this area, as for the most part it was run
down and what I call “junky”. We think we have done a great deal to improve the area of Vestavia
Hills near Interstate 65. Since that time, we have seen some improvement in the area, most notably
the demolition of the former motel across Highway 31 from our property. This was a great
improvement and I understand a new restaurant is planned for a portion of the site. Also, the
automobile dealership south of us has invested to raise the elevation of their building to prevent
flooding. If you look back, none of these improvements happened overnight but I believe a very
positive trend for the area has been established.
 
Let’s not do anything to reverse this trend for the City of Vestavia Hills or property owners along
Montgomery Highway.
 
Thank You,
 

Emris Graham, Jr.
Senior Vice President
Cushman & Wakefield / EGS Commercial Real Estate

Direct: +1 205 314 5521
Main: +1 205 939 4440
egraham@egsinc.com

WE’VE MOVED! PLEASE NOTE OUR NEW CORPORATE ADDRESS BELOW.

2100 3rd Avenue North, Suite 700
Birmingham, AL 35203 | USA


